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PHC:  CH10 Designations and Heritage Orders (Part) 06.08.15 

  [9.32 am] 

 

SJH:   Good morning.  Right, well, the first one is designations.  Michelle, have 

we got a full list here of the submitters, are there any submitters in the 

back of the Court or are they just here with – you have one there.  5 

Right, well, we will come to that in a moment.   

 

 We have a schedule around submitters and difficulties around coding.  

Mr Pizzey, this goes back to November last year and still it is not right 

and still there are problems. 10 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Yes, I understand there are still problems. 

 

SJH:   So we will have to do the best we can but it is disappointing yet again to 

have difficulties from the Council I am afraid.  It is not your 15 

department I know. 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Sir, my role today is as counsel for the Requiring Authority. 

 

SJH:   Yes.   20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So, Ms Viskovic, you would stand for the Councillors in 

their capacity as respondent to that essentially a submitter? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   I am here as a submitter and I suppose in the Council’s role 25 

as the plan administrator. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So in terms of the Chairman’s message there it was 

something certainly for you to convey to your client? 

 30 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Well, I think it has been conveyed, I don’t think you need to 

(INDISTINCT 2.03) our CEO has conveyed it very clearly.  So let’s 

just go through the other submitters.  Mr Lee?  Okay, thank you, we 35 

will come back to you in a moment.  Ms Radburnd you are here just 

supporting Mr Pizzy, is it? 

 

  [9.35 am] 

 40 

MS VISKOVIC:   Ms Radburnd is here - - - 

 

SJH:   And there is someone from CERA who is just here as an observer.  

Okay, thank you.  So then who, could you just identify your name?  

Could you just stand up and tell us who you are please? 45 
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MR LAWRY:   My name is Mr David Lawry. 

 

SJH:   Could you just spell that for us, Mr Lawry? 

 

MR LAWRY:   L-A-W-R-Y. 5 

 

SJH:   All right, and you are here to submit on? 

 

MR LAWRY:   I am just observing at this stage but I - - - 

 10 

SJH:   You are just observing, okay. 

 

MR LAWRY:   But I did document the fact I would be here. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Now, the latest red line version has been filed. 15 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Yes, sir, that was attached to my memorandum of Monday of 

this week. 

 

SJH:   And you, the Crown and Ms Viskovic in her role are content with the 20 

timetabling suggestions that have been made? 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Sir, my understanding of the timetabling suggestions is that the 

proposed hearing date may now be 21 September rather than 

7 September. 25 

 

SJH:   We have got to be slightly flexible because of Panel members 

availability and we were getting some alternatives appointed but it is 

taking a little bit longer than we thought so we are trying to just balance 

things so it may be, what date is it now the - --  30 

 

MS KARDOS:    It is now Monday the 21st and Tuesday, if needed, the 22nd. 

 

SJH:   Which is what I have got here.  Have you got a different date from an 

earlier document? 35 

 

MR PIZZEY:   The only dates I have, sir, were the proposed dates in 

Ms Viskovic’s memorandum from Monday. 

 

MS KARDOS:   They have changed since then. 40 

 

SJH:   They have changed, does that cause any problems to anybody because I 

am afraid you are going to have to live with it because getting Panel 

members and getting the right number on bigger chapters than this one 

so that we don’t have issues if there is a conflict, we have got to sit as a 45 

four whereas this one there is not quite so much in it. 
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MR PIZZEY:   Totally understood, sir. 

 

SJH:   So 21 with 22 September.  My suspicion is after designation in part 1 

that this will only be a half day hearing in any event. 5 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Sir, I would suggest however that if the hearing is to be on 

21 September the evidence exchange timetable could be put out by a 

week.  So the evidence exchange timetable had 17 August for the 

Council as Requiring Authority to file and serve its evidence-in-chief 10 

and I have discussed with Ms Viskovic that - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, we have actually got an amended evidence timetable here, haven’t 

we, Council evidence 31 August?  Is that acceptable? 

 15 

MR PIZZEY:   Sir. 

 

SJH:   Submitter evidence 8 September, rebuttal 14 September, cross-

examination notices 17 September and then the standard procedural 

matters apply.  Pre-circulation of evidence if serving by website 20 

required by 3 pm on the due date.  The onus of the obligation to serve 

does not shift to the Secretariat and if it is after 3 pm on the last day it 

must be served directly.  Anything late leave must be sought with 

reasons.  I will just repeat again that evidence is pre-read.  We require a 

highlights package from witnesses limited to 10 minutes.  Extension by 25 

leave setting out reasons.   

 

 We would just add in – well, before I do that I should come to the 

submitters.  Mr Lee, what is your concern, what part of this are you 

concerned with? 30 

 

MR LEE:   I am not sure what you are getting at there. 

 

SJH:   Could you just stand up please.  Just speak into the microphone. 

 35 

MR LEE:   My main concern is Moorhouse Ave where there is the road 

widening and the reason behind it, where does the City Council need to 

take this road widening on Moorhouse Ave and when you look at 

Christchurch as a whole how we put things together, does it really need 

that road widening because - - - 40 

 

  [9.40 am] 

 

SJH:   Okay.  No, I just needed to know what part, we are not going into the 

merits today that is for the hearing itself. 45 
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MR LEE:   I thought this was the pre-hearing, is it? 

 

SJH:   That is exactly right. 

 

MR LEE:   I thought you were meant to discuss things like in-depth type thing? 5 

 

SJH:   No. 

 

MR LEE:   You don’t do that? 

 10 

SJH:   That is at the hearing.  This is a procedural matter to get everything 

ready so we have an efficient hearing.  So the first question for you, do 

you wish to call any evidence or do you wish to give evidence 

yourself? 

 15 

MR LEE:   No. 

 

SJH:   You just want to make a submission? 

 

MR LEE:   Yes, explain, you know, how I came about my decision, that sort of 20 

thing. 

 

SJH:   Okay, all right, that is fine.   

 

MR LEE:   Is that okay? 25 

 

SJH:   That is absolutely fine. 

 

MR LEE:   All right, thanks. 

 30 

SJH:   And we look forward to hearing you on that and you will get a notice in 

due course.   

 

 We will come to this later but we rather expected that by and large the 

expert evidence in stage 2 would be the same as those for stage 1 and it 35 

seems to be rather inefficient that, looking at the witnesses list through 

today and tomorrow that a lot of them are not.  But we intend making 

an order that if evidence is simply a repetition of stage 1 evidence for 

any hearing, even if it is a different witness, rather than setting that 

evidence out in full we expect it to be done simply by cross-referencing 40 

the original evidence so that all we receive full evidence on in a brief 

would be on new or additional matters.   

 

 We would also require that as we release decisions before hearings we 

would accept the plan provisions themselves to be updated to reflect 45 

that.  Now, I don’t think that is going to have much impact in 
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designations, Mr Pizzey, but simply we are going to make this as an 

order right through. 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Thank you, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   So Mr Lawry, are you interested in all of this or one particular part? 

 

MR LAWRY:   There is several issues I am involved in.  One of them is I am 

trying to – you may remember I was excluded from giving evidence on 

the airport designation because I was out of time.  Basically the process 10 

here quite frankly I think has been quite confusing for submitters as just 

indicated a minute ago.  However, I know you are doing your best and 

it is a very complicated issue.  You excluded yourself from that 

particular designation issue if you remember, do you recall this? 

 15 

SJH:   Yes, I do. 

 

MR LAWRY:   My issue would be in relation to designations is that even 

though through my own misreading of it I was out of time and I accept 

the decision made, the fact that the Council at that stage were 20 

indicating to you that that other process wasn’t taking place I would 

have thought with Independent Commissioner would have given you 

the power to direct the Council to advise you if in fact that designation 

had expired.   

 25 

 It seems to me to be wrong to rollover a designation when, even though 

I cannot submit on it, it seems wrong that your Panel, being 

independent, to rollover a designation when there has been a claim that 

it has actually ceased to occur, and quite a strong submission with 

documentation.  At least I would have thought as an independent body 30 

you could actually require the Council to investigate that point rather 

than just roll it over.  I mean it shouldn’t be rolled over if in fact it has 

ceased, that is one issue and I may be way out of time with that, I 

certainly am in terms of stage 1. 

 35 

SJH:   Well, there is a decision already been made on that which I played no 

part in as you know. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Yes, and I am just raising the point that I would have thought 

being fully independent you could have asked the Council to actually 40 

research that issue for you.  Seeing you are being advised by the 

Council that there was perfectly no issues to - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, there was no confusion about what was in stage 1 designations, 

you were simply out of time. 45 
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MR LAWRY:   And I accept that. 

 

SJH:   So your next point? 

 

MR LAWRY:   The second point, the reason I am here today is that I have 5 

actually asked in my earlier submissions in relation to it has been put 

under planning and maps, that in fact the Council include a section 

where they will honour an agreement to assess the noise contours every 

10 years which would be 2017.  I am having difficulty being told what 

section and where exactly that is to be heard so I thought to come today 10 

and find out clarity.  So the clarity is - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, I am not sure it is a plan matter. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Sorry? 15 

 

SJH:   Is this in the existing plan? 

 

MR LAWRY:   It is in the plan. 

 20 

SJH:   Or is it an agreement with you or what? 

 

MR LAWRY:   No, it is an agreement with the Selwyn Council, I have got the 

document here, and basically quite a range of people where the Council 

agreed that every 10 years they would re-evaluate the contours because 25 

the contours are based on engine noise levels of the current fleet and in 

fact movements, that is what creates the full contours. 

 

  [9.45 am] 

 30 

 Now, that agreement exists, and I have got a copy here and I have 

given a copy.  What I am having trouble talking to is where can I have 

that talked to, to try and get it into the plan so that that agreement is in 

fact honoured.  I mean at the moment we have got a situation where a 

lot of people are being restricted about their activities due to airport 35 

noise contours.  

 

SJH:   Well, we are struggling at the moment to see how that is a plan matter as 

opposed to a - - - 

 40 

MR LAWRY:   Well, I am trying to get it into the plan so that the agreement 

actually is going to be honoured and they will do it that is what I am 

trying to suggest.  I mean the reality is that submitters like myself can’t 

spend thousands and thousands of dollars lawyering up to try and 

engage in this process.  So what we are trying to do, what I am trying to 45 
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do, is put in documentation with evidence trying to get some advice as 

to where I can engage to have these issues looked at.   

 

 Clearly there is a whole lot of restrictions coming through the 

50 decibel zone in other areas of these submissions like chapter 6 5 

whereby, for example, people that have – currently the plan allows you 

to have four persons, tariff paying persons in your house.  Under the 

new proposals the airport is seeking to exclude all tariff people in your 

house.   

 10 

 To me that is anti-competition, I mean they are reducing the supply of 

accommodation in one area and they are actually providing 

accommodation at the airport in another area and I thought submissions 

weren’t allowed to have any competitive advantage to it.  Clearly if you 

are reducing supply in one area and providing supply in another area it 15 

is a competitive advantage.   

 

 However, that aside, my point is there is an agreement that exists 

through the Councils, through other developers at the time at Rolleston 

when Rolleston was developed, that every 10 years they would re-20 

evaluate the contours which means it provides fairness.  Like if there is 

going to huge restrictions under the contours fine but if there is an 

agreement to re-evaluate them that should be honoured and it should be 

in the plan.  

 25 

SJH:   Is that an agreement that is within the existing plan or does it stand 

outside the plan?  

 

MR LAWRY:   It stands outside the plan.  It was actually hidden, it was hard 

to find, and the only reason it exists, sir, is that during the process when 30 

the Council was looking at Rolleston the developers brought in some 

very strong experts from the States that showed that the 50 decibel 

issue is used nowhere else in the world and in fact is really somewhat 

ridiculous but that is another point.  But because of - - - 

 35 

SJH:   Well, there is a difficulty around that because the 50 decibel - - - 

 

MR LAWRY:   It exists, yes.  

 

SJH:   Well, not only does it exist it is also in the superior document, it is in the 40 

RPS, isn’t it?  

 

MR LAWRY:   And you can’t fight that but the reality is it is not used 

anywhere else in the world.  And the point - - - 

 45 

SJH:   We can’t revisit that. 
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MR LAWRY:   No, I accept that.  

 

SJH:   The RPS prevents us, doesn’t it?  

 

MR LAWRY:   No, I accept that you are right, you can’t change it, I am just 5 

pointing out the issue.  The issue is however that there is an agreement, 

we are talking about fairness and balance and the public trying to 

engage in the process.  That is the whole purpose as I understand.  

Now, I don’t think the public are having a great time involving in this 

personally.  To me it is quite confusing, I am not a thick person, it is 10 

difficult to engage.  I am simply here to ask what part of the process 

can I talk about this so that we can try and get it into the plan - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, I am struggling to see how it is a planning matter if it is an 

agreement that sits outside the plan.  15 

 

MR LAWRY:   But as a submitter can’t you - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I don’t even know what you mean by an agreement, do 

you mean a contract, do you mean a letter, do you mean some sort of 20 

understanding, what do you mean?  

 

MR LAWRY:   It is a signed document between the developers of Rolleston, 

the Councils - - - 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   What date is it?  

 

MR LAWRY:   Do you want me to submit it, it has actually been submitted.  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, you ought to know what it is, what date is it?  30 

 

MR LAWRY:   Okay.  2008, it is an agreement relating to settlement of an 

Environment Court proceeding between the Christchurch International 

Airport, Selwyn District Council, Mr and Mrs Foster, Nimbus 

Consulting - - - 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So it is a memorandum between parties to an 

Environment Court proceeding in 2008?  

 

MR LAWRY:   That document is, yes.  40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   That is what you are referring to?  

 

MR PIZZEY:   Sir, I know a little about the document that Mr Lawry is 

referring to as an agreement.  What it is, is an expert witness caucusing 45 

statement that was made by acoustic experts in the context of an issue 

on the Selwyn District Plan.  So that was a statement of the caucusing 
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experts which wasn’t followed through into any plan provisions.  The 

recommendation of the noise experts was that there be a review of the 

noise contour every 10 years.  We have our noise contour provisions 

now as you have identified in the regional policy statement which will 

be reviewed every 10 years.  5 

 

  [9.50 am] 

 

SJH:   But it may be you.  You or Ms Viskovic may be able to assist us.  Isn’t 

there a matter dealing with the noise contours that is in stage 3? 10 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, I understand that the noise contours, in particular the 55 

and 65 dBA contours will be dealt with in chapter six which is the 

general rules and which is part of stage 3. 

 15 

SJH:   Well I, I think that is where you need to submit, Mr Lawry.  That is in 

stage 3 is it? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir, that is my understanding. 

 20 

SJH:   Which has been notified or not yet notified? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, it has been notified. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Well I already have submitted and I was advised that it was 25 

chapter 6 in this area.  So you know, this is a confusion that was caused 

for people like myself. 

 

SJH:  Well it’s - - - 

 30 

MR LAWRY:   Thank you for your - - -  

 

SJH:   No, no, no, it is definitely in stage 3 and you’re quite at liber-, well just 

let us double check in case we’ve been given the wrong information. 

 35 

MR LAWRY:   Well it may be best I just seek clarification that comes to me in 

due course and - - -  

 

SJH:   No, no, no, let us just see if we can sort it now to save you.  I’m not sure 

the 51 is up for discussion because of the Regional Planning Statement.  40 

I was not involved but that argument is - - - 

 

MR BALL:   I believe it’s in stage 2. 

 

SJH:   It is in stage 2? 45 
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MR BALL:  Yes, and certainly I can guess - - - 

 

SJH:   But it is not under designations?  It is not under designations is it? 

 

MR BALL:   No it is, in chapter 6. 5 

 

MR LAWRY:    Now that is the answer if it is a definitive answer that is fine. 

 

SJH:   And we are hearing that when?  Today or? 

 10 

MS KARDOS:  We are deferring stage 2 into stage 3, general rules for 

efficiency sake. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, so timing wise. 

 15 

SJH:   We have amalgamated, yes.  What has happened is, that reminds me, we 

are amalgamating because of the constraints we have got in terms of 

hearing time and our overall constraints which you will be aware of, 

Mr Lawry, I am sure.  We are amalgamating this chapter 6, stage 2 and 

stage 3 into one hearing. 20 

 

MR LAWRY:   Which I have got – I mean don’t get me wrong, I am not trying 

to be smart here - - - 

 

SJH:   No, no, no, no, but you have submitted on chapter 6. 25 

 

MR LAWRY:   So when was I advised of that? 

 

MS KARDOS:   That is exactly what this pre-hearing is about. 

 30 

MR LAWRY:   And that is why I am here asking the questions. 

 

SJH:   But we’re not at chapter 6 yet. 

 

MS KARDOS:   No.  But that will be discussed at chapter 6. 35 

 

SJH:   Which is when? 

 

MS KARDOS:   It is on Monday. 

 40 

MR LAWRY:   Now that is clarified I will be here on Monday, thank you very 

much. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 45 

MR LAWRY:   Thank you. 
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SJH:   All right.  Thank you. 

 

MS KARDOS:   It is on the website as well. 

 5 

SJH:   It is on the website, Mr Lawry. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Do you want me to answer that?  No probably not, okay.  That 

is on the website, I totally agree with you.  But the specific point that 

I’m asking about is about the ability to talk about this agreement.  And 10 

that is not on the website.  So I was clarifying if it was actually - - - 

 

SJH:   Of course it would not be.  That’s your submission which is what you do 

at the hearing. 

 15 

MR LAWRY:   Fine. 

 

SJH:   This is a pre-hearing, which I have explained to Mr Lee and it is self-

evident from the documentation that is about it that we are trying to 

organise the hearings so they are sufficient, efficient and the things we 20 

want to hear about from you on Monday, are you intending to call any 

expert evidence? 

 

MR LAWRY:   Yes. 

 25 

SJH:   All right.  Well we will need to know who your witness is and things 

like that on Monday.  Are you intending to give evidence yourself or 

simply submit? 

 

MR LAWRY:   Yes, I am going to give evidence. 30 

 

SJH:   Right, well they are the sorts of things we want to hear on Monday.   

 

MR LAWRY:   Okay, well thank you. 

 35 

SJH:   And we will need to know the name of your expert witness and things 

like that. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Thank you. 

 40 

SJH:   All right? 

 

MR LAWRY:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   So if you come back Monday, the hearing is now later because of the 45 

amalgamation of the two, it is into early next year, isn’t it?  But you 
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will have full opportunity to call your witness to give expert evidence 

on these matters and you understand about experts.  It is an acoustic 

expert or what sort of an expert? 

 

MR LAWRY:   Yes, it will need to be a person who can give credentials to 5 

being an expert.  I understand what you are saying. 

 

SJH:   Yes, okay.  But on the other matter around agreements and suchlike that 

you are contending for, you are at perfect liberty, and the directions 

will be given about you filing that evidence, you will be allowed to 10 

produce documents and all of those things at the hearing. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Okay?  Thank you.  Now you are quite at liberty to stay for the rest of 15 

the day or you can go as you choose. 

 

 Now we have dealt with evidence and we have dealt with updating 

provisions, as the case may be.  Legal submissions again may be very 

brief in opening and can be read.  They need to be to the Secretariat 20 

three working days before the hearing. 

 

  [9.55 am] 

 

 Closing, again as we have done after we have heard the evidence we 25 

expect those to be rather more fulsome and they are to be filed with the 

Secretariat 3.00 pm the day prior to presentation and the hearing dates 

we now have are Monday 21 September and Tuesday 22 September 

reserved. 

 30 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, might I address you on just the Crown’s position.  

The reason I am here sir, is although the Crown is not a submitter on 

this proposal at all, there is a note in the Council with wearing its 

territorial hat on, sir, a memorandum referring to a submission point 

made by the Crown regarding the Ministry of Education designations 35 

being shown in the planning maps.  Sir, that submission was made in 

respect of the Specific Purpose Zone proposal, not the designation 

proposal.  That is the first point. 

 

 The second point is the submission is really all about ensuring that the 40 

final planning maps at the end of this process show everything.  At the 

moment the stage 2 planning maps are missing the stage 1 details.   

 

 So my suggestion, sir, is that first of all it is not a scope issue as 

asserted by the Council.  This is a valid submission.  If anything my 45 

suggestion is that the submission - - - 
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SJH:   But it is not under designation, it is actually under - - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   It is not under designation so it should be deferred, sir, 

either to the Specific Purpose hearing, because it is about clarification, 5 

or alternatively if you just leave it on the table it provides the Panel 

with just another submission with the effect of making sure that the 

final planning maps issued at the end of this entire process shows 

everything. 

 10 

SJH:   Well I think it should be deferred and heard with Specific Purpose.  That 

is more sensible, Mr Carranceja, isn’t it?   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Viskovic, just on the question of scope.  Did the 

Crown’s notice of requirement for rollover on behalf of the Ministry of 15 

Education address the maps? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   In stage 1. 20 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   In stage 1.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I see. 

 25 

MR CARRANCEJA:   All of those were already rolled over and already a 

subject of the decision. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 30 

MR CARRANCEJA:   But sir, they just have not been shown. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  It just seemed difficult for me to see why there 

would be a live scope argument between the Council and the Crown on 

this given one would think the need to be clear in the plan around 35 

where the designations were, and normally mapping is the way to do 

that. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, I spoke to Ms Viskovic prior to this pre-hearing 

and I understand that she knows now where we are coming from and I 40 

presume she will now agree that this submission point ought to be 

deferred rather than - - -  

 

SJH:   When does the comments period expire for the designation? 

 45 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Oh, I have that, sir.  I will just note that. 
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MS KARDOS:   On the 4th of August, sir. 

 

SJH:   It has expired?  And have any comments been lodged? 

 5 

MS VISKOVIC:   None to my knowledge sir.  The Council is in the process of 

compiling comments on the draft decisions which have been released.  

There haven’t been final decisions made by - - - 

 

SJH:   See, one of the issues that I have always seen from the beginning of this 10 

process, which is a little unfortunate, is that if someone appealed for 

example on the Airport designations, it holds up everything else. It has 

not been looked at in that capacity, and the same with Natural Hazards, 

one landowner in one particular hazard zone can hold up the whole 

city. 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Which is somewhat unusual, but I don’t think that was perhaps thought 

through in the order in Council and suchlike but that is what we are 20 

living with.  But if there is no appeal been lodged I presume the 

Council now will be preparing the maps accordingly for stage 1. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes sir, and just to clarify, the intention of the Council was 

always to show all of the designations on the final planning maps.  The 25 

reason why they were not shown on the stage 2 planning maps was just 

to avoid confusion to stop people from potentially trying to submit on 

the designations that were essentially heard as part of stage 1. 

 

SJH:   But your concern relates specifically to a stage 2 matter but under 30 

special - - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Specific Purpose Zones, sir. 

 

SJH:   - - - Specific Purpose Zone. 35 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   All right.  We will simply defer it to be heard with that. 

 40 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes sir. 

 

SJH:   Where it clearly is within scope. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes sir. 45 
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SJH:   Okay. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   And on that basis I am wondering if the Crown might 

be excused from this designation hearing because there is no role - - - 

 5 

SJH:   Yes, by all means, yes. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Pizzey, just in your memorandum at paragraph 6 you 10 

refer to meetings and discussions with various submitters and we have 

heard here from Mr Lee but there are various others noted there.  Just 

bearing in mind that the designations matter is about specific 

designations being rolled over with modifications, in other words 

discreet topics, that might relate to particular submitter interest, I take 15 

it. 

 

  [10.00 am] 

 

 Do you have any comment on whether or not those discussions are 20 

going any further and whether or not you would be in a position to 

update the Panel on any further narrowing on the matter as an issue for 

hearing? 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Yes, thank you, sir.  There is a possibility of narrowing down 25 

of issues in relation to one of the Roading designations but that is not 

going to be resolved one way or the other until towards the end of this 

month.  That is the only one on which there is any ongoing discussions 

with the submitters. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So just thinking about that, sorry before you sit down, so 35 

to the extent to which you may achieve a resolution with the only 

relevant submitter interest, say in a particular rollover question, do you 

think it might be useful to put in front of the Panel a memorandum at 

that point to that is effectively non-contentious, can simply be rolled 

through? 40 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Absolutely sir, that is a given.  Yes.   

 

SJH:   I think one of the issues we have had to date, if you would just be alive 

to it is that submitters would write in and say “we have got agreement 45 

from the Council” and then we would have to check, and I think we 
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have now got well established that even if it is by email it really needs 

to be a joint memorandum from both parties agreeing that so we have 

that on the record. 

 

MR PIZZEY:  Yes sir. 5 

 

SJH:   So if that can be noted but I think we have pretty much got that nailed 

anyway. 

 

MR PIZZEY:   Yes sir. 10 

 

SJH:   Mr Lee, you will have heard the directions we have made.  If you want 

to update or expand on your own submission that you have already 

filed, and which you will have the opportunity to speak at at the 

hearing, you could file that in writing three days before the hearing 15 

date, so three working days before the 21 September. 

 

MR LEE:   What do you mean?  With our submissions at the moment if I want 

to make any changes to them I can actually do it? 

 20 

SJH:   If you want to change it or update it or add to it or expand it you have 

got the liberty to do that, that would be by 16 September you would 

need to file it and then at the hearing itself you can speak to that and 

then the Panel may have some questions of you. 

 25 

MR LEE:   Yes, okay, that is good. 

 

SJH:   So you understand all of that? 

 

MR LEE:   Yes, I probably would. 30 

 

SJH:   And we will send you a copy of the memorandum by email but it will 

also be posted online, not the memorandum of our directions. 

 

MR LEE:   What is the date, did you say? 35 

 

SJH:   If you file it by the 16th and the hearing date will be the 21 Monday the 

21 September.  Is it Monday?  Okay. 

 

MR LEE:   Yes, thanks very much. 40 

 

SJH:   And if you need any other help about what you might add to that, if you 

talk to the friend of the submitter before you leave today he will give 

you some assistance and advice if you want any. 

 45 

MR LEE:   Okay, thank you. 
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SJH:   All right, does anything have anything, the Crown we have sorted, the 

Council with two hats, Mr Pizzey, Ms Viskovic?  Mr Lawry, you 

understand you come back Monday and you can advise us of the – and 

we will make timetables for your hearing and suchlike then. 5 

 

MR LAWRY:   I appreciate your time, sir. 

 

SJH:   No, no, that is all right.  Thank you.  We will adjourn until 11 am 

 10 

ADJOURNED [10.03 am] 


